
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

April 11, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order and Flag Salute 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Commissioner Absence 

4. Communications 

5. Approve minutes of March 28, 2023 Commissioner meeting 

6. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers 199127-199197:   $227,365.16 
 GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS:   $227,365.16 

7. Local 3390 Reports  

8. Chiefs Reports  

9. Standing Committee Reports 

10. Chairman’s Report  

11. 2022 Bond Update  

12. OLD BUSINESS     
a.  

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Draft Resolution 2023-XX – General Levy Multi-Year Lid Lift D. Doan 
b.  2023 General Levy Lid Lift “For” or “Against” Committees  D. Doan 
 

14. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

15. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

16. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS  

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be Tuesday, April 25, 2023, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
March 28, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Flag Salute. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Sutich, Entze (virtual) and Nelson, F/C D. Doan, A/C P. 
Oldenburg, A/C T. Meyer, A/C S. Booth, A/C J. Johnson, Finance Manager K. Hackmeister 
(remote) and EA T. VanderVaate 

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded to approve the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioners Nelson and Wilsie both announced they will not be attending the April 11, 
2023 Board meeting. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
WFCA Annual Report included in agenda packet. 
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Sutich and Wilsie moved and seconded to approve Minutes of the March 14, 2023 
regular meeting.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call 
vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded to approve Accounts Payable Vouchers 
199038-199126, Payroll Vouchers 199022-199037, and ACH transfers as set forth in the agenda 
for a total consideration of $2,519,810.69.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED 
by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
Chief Meyer reported: 

 Testing for the driver/operator program will take place in June.  We currently have 27 
applications for 20 positions. 

 On March 22, 2023, the District responded to a significant incident with South Kitsap Fire 
and several law enforcement agencies involving a wrong way driver with multiple injuries 
resulting in one extrication and two people transported for treatment. 



 
Board of Commissioners 

03‐28‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Chief Booth reported: 
 He attended an L&I Firefighter Injury and Illness Reduction Program – great class. 
 The District sponsored an IAFF Resilience Training at headquarters with attendees coming 

from around the region to attend. 
 
Chief Doan reported: 

 He participated in a trop shoot with several District employees, competing against Gig 
Harbor Fire – everyone had a great time. 

 The District will officially end its volunteer program effective June 30, 2023 – all 
volunteers affected have been notified. 

 On March 24, 2023 he participated in a program reading to students at Swiftwater 
Elementary. 

 In efforts to reduce costs but still communicate with community members, District Staff 
have made the decision to circulate the On Scene Newsletter electronically.  Discussion 
followed. 

 County Councilmember Robyn Denson will be attending Fire Ops 101 in Boise, being 
sponsored by Local 3390 and Key Peninsula. 

 The District is in discussions with the City of Tacoma to determine the feasibility of 
installing a radio tower at Station 53 to help the 800 system.   

 He met with the South Kitsap Fire Chief today to attend the WFC Legislative Meeting and 
discuss the CAD to CAD integration to improve how we partner with South Kitsap for 
training and response. 

 With Chairman Urvina’s support he has submitted a request to run for an open seat on the 
Washington Fire Chief’s Board, Position #7. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
Krystal Hackmeister presented the February 2023 Finance Report. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 BOND UPDATE 
Chief Johnson presented a project timeline, a copy is in the Agenda packet and advised the Board 
he will be soliciting members for a Station 51 design committee soon. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
a.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
a. Draft Resolution 2023-XX.  Chief Doan presented a draft resolution for review and comment 

by the Board.  Discussion followed. 
b. 2022 Annual Performance Report.  Chief Oldenburg presented the 2022 Annual Performance 

Report with a brief review. 
 
OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT 



 
Board of Commissioners 

03‐28‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Karl Kreitzer, resident in the City of Gig Harbor, requested information regarding the number of 
FTEs authorized for year end 2021 and 2022. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
April 15, 2023 – deadline for Commissioners to file Form F-1 with the PDC. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 5:32pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, April 11, 2023.   

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199127 through 199127 5,357.99$                  5,357.99$                            
199128 through 199159 133,288.27$              133,288.27$                        

138,646.26$              138,646.26$                        
 

138,646.26$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: March 28, 2023
APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 3/29/23





















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199160 through 199197 88,718.90$                88,718.90$                          

88,718.90$                88,718.90$                          
 

88,718.90$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: April 4, 2023
APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR KRYSTAL HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 4/5/23















 
 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 
Multi-Year Lid Lift  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF PIERCE COUNTY 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 5 (GIG HARBOR FIRE & MEDIC ONE) PROVIDING 
FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE DISTRICT AT AN 
ELECTION TO BE HELD THEREIN  ON AUGUST 1, 2023, OF A PROPOSITION WHICH 
WOULD RESTORE THE REGULAR FIRE SUPPRESSION TAX LEVY RATE TO $1.50 
PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION FOR A ONE (1) YEAR PERIOD, AND THEN 
WOULD ALLOW SPECIFIC INCREASES FOR EACH OF FIVE (5) CONSECUTIVE 
SUCCESSIVE YEARS, IN PROPERTY TAXES COLLECTED BY THE FIRE DISTRICT 
APPLICABLE TO ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE DISTRICT, IN EXCESS 
OF THE LIMITATIONS IMPOSED BY CHAPTER 84.55 OF THE REVISED CODE OF 
WASHINGTON AND PROVIDING THAT THE DOLLAR AMOUNT OF THE LEVY IN 
THE SIXTH YEAR SHALL SERVE AS THE BASE FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF  FUTURE 
YEARS’ LEVIES; SAID LEVY SHALL PROVIDE FUNDS REQUIRED BY THE FIRE 
DISTRICT FOR THE PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION AND FIRE SUPPRESSION 
SERVICES, INCLUDING PERSONNEL COSTS, TRAINING FOR SUCH PERSONNEL, 
AND RELATED EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, VEHICLES AND OTHER CAPITAL NEEDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Fire Protection District No. 5, Gig Harbor Fire and Medic One, has 
heretofore received approval by qualified electors of a regular property tax levy of $1.50 per 
thousand of assessed valuation to defray the cost of fire protection, fire suppression and other 
emergency services provided by the Fire District; and 

 
WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Fire Commissioners (the “Board”) of 

Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 (the “District”), it is essential for the protection of 
the public health, safety, and life, of the residents of the District that minimum emergency 
service levels be maintained; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a regular property tax rate of $1.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation, 
applicable to all taxable property located in the district, has been previously authorized for fire 
protection, fire suppression and other emergency services and may be lawfully levied within the 
limits prescribed by RCW 84.55 as amended, which limits annual property tax increases to 1% 
over and above the previous year’s tax revenues; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 84.55.050 authorizes the 1% limit on annual increases to be exceeded 
with voter approval, commonly referred to as a “lid lift” election, and 
 



 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, a 1% limitation would restrict the District from levying up to its full 
authorized levy rate of $1.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation, resulting in an inability to 
maintain current levels of services and response times in a community where the demand for 
service (911 call volume) has increased by approximately 10% since 2021; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the electorate should be given the opportunity to decide whether the 
reduction in services and response times should occur or instead, whether the authorized rate of 
$1.50 per $1,000 should be levied, waiving the 1% limit of RCW 84.55, commonly referred to as 
“lifting the lid”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, current statutes authorize multi-year lid lifts for up to six (6) years, with the 
levy dollar amount in the sixth year being used as a base for establishment of the tax levy rate in 
future years; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, FOUND, DETERMINED AND 
ORDERED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  A regular property tax rate of $1.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation, applicable to all 
taxable property located in the district, has been previously duly authorized for fire protection, 
fire suppression and other emergency services, and is necessary and appropriate to levy, 
notwithstanding the 1% annual increase limitation of RCW 84.55.010 et seq., as amended.  RCW 
84.55 places a 1% limitation on the increase of tax revenue collected by the District annually.  
Such 1% limitation on the increase would cause a loss of revenue to the District of $1,115,000 in 
2024.  Such losses will necessitate reduction in services and increase response times as 
enumerated in the fifth recital above.  This resolution and the resultant election would give the 
voters the opportunity to choose to continue services pursuant to the previously authorized levy 
rate approved by the voters, waiving the 1% limit of RCW 84.55 (commonly referred to as a “lid 
lift”.) 
 
Section 2.  The proposal set forth below, if authorized by the qualified electors of the District, 
will allow a levy rate of $1.50 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for a one (1) year period, coupled 
with specified increases in property taxes collected in each of the five (5) consecutive successive 
years thereafter. There shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the District, for their 
ratification or rejection, at an election on August 1, 2023, a proposition to exceed the 1% 
limitation (and “lift the lid”) of RCW 84.55.010 et seq. and levy the full authorized rate of $1.50 
per $1,000 of assessed valuation for a one (1) year period, coupled with specified increases in 
property taxes collected in each of the five (5) consecutive successive years thereafter, and 
applying a limit factor of 6% annually,  subject to statutory and constitutional limits, which are 
otherwise applicable; provided further that the levy dollar amount in the sixth year shall be 
used as the base for establishment of the levy for future years' levies. 
 
Section 3.  The Board hereby requests the Auditor of Pierce County, Washington, as ex officio 
County Supervisor of Elections, to call and conduct such special election to be held within the 
District on August 1, 2023, and to submit to the qualified electors of the District the proposition 
in substantially the following form: 



 
 

3 
 

 
PROPOSITION NO. 1 

 
PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT NO. 5  

(GIG HARBOR FIRE & MEDIC ONE) 
 

RE-AUTHORIZING PROPERTY TAX LEVY RATE 
OF $1.50 PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION 

FOR A SIX YEAR PERIOD (2024-2029) 
 

The Board of Fire Commissioners for Pierce County Fire District #5 adopted Resolution No. 2023-
XX, concerning a proposition to maintain and adequately fund District operations.  Proposition 1 
will restore the District’s regular property tax levy to the previous voter-approved rate of $1.50 
per $1,000 of assessed value for collection in 2024, and permit annual revenue increases of up to 
6% for each of the succeeding five years (but never to exceed the $1.50 per $1,000 rate limit). The 
dollar amount of the levy in 2029 shall serve as the base for subsequent levy limitations as provided 
by Chapter 84.55 RCW. Shall Proposition 1 be approved?  
 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS: 
 
To vote IN FAVOR of the foregoing proposition, mark a cross (X) in the “Levy, Yes” square. 
 
To vote AGAINST the foregoing proposition, mark a cross (X) in the “Levy, No” square. 
 
 LEVY, YES      
 
 LEVY, NO      
 
 
Section 4.  The locations of the polling places, if any, shall be as specified by the Auditor of 
Pierce County, Washington, as ex officio County Supervisor of Elections for the District. 
 
Section 5.  Approval of the proposition described in Section 3 above, by a simple majority, shall 
be construed and interpreted as qualified elector approval of a tax increase in compliance with 
RCW 84.55 as amended. 
 
Section 6.  With respect to this election, the District shall participate in the publication of 
information in the Local Voters’ Pamphlet, including but not limited to an explanatory statement 
reviewed and approved by the District’s attorney, a Statement For, and a Statement Against, 
pursuant to Chapter 29.81A of the Revised Code of Washington. 
 
Section 7.  The Secretary to the Board is hereby directed to deliver a certified copy of this 
resolution to the Auditor of Pierce County, Washington, as ex officio County Supervisor of 
Elections for the District, on or before May 12, 2023. 
 



 
 

4 
 

Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED at a regular Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5 this ___ day of April, 2023. 
 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
Attest:      DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
__________________________   _________________________________ 
District Secretary    Chairman 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY 
and 

APPLICATION TO SERVE ON “FOR” or “AGAINST” COMMITTEES 

Opportunity Posted:  April 12, 2023 

Applications Must be Received by:  April 19, 2023, 11:59pm 

Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 (Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One) is 
seeking applications from individuals interested in being appointed to the committees to write 
the “for” and “against” statements for the Pierce County Local Voters’ Pamphlet related to the 
District’s ballot measure for a multi-year general levy lid lift to be considered 
on August 1, 2023.  Each committee is limited to no more than three members.

Those interested in applying for either committee should complete and submit this application 
to: Dennis Doan, Fire Chief, Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One, 10222 Bujacich Rd. NW, Gig Harbor, 
WA 98332 or via email at ddoan@gigharborfire.org by 11:59pm on April 19, 2023. The 
Board will take action on the appointments at its April 25, 2023 regular board meeting. 

Applicants Please Complete and Submit the Following Information: 

NAME: _________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS:  _____________________________________________________ 

CITY, STATE, ZIP:  ______________________________________________________ 

PHONE NUMBER:  ______________________________________________________ 

EMAIL ADDRESS:  ______________________________________________________ 

DESIRED POSITION (select one): ☐FOR 
☐AGAINST

mailto:ddoan@gigharborfire.org

	2023-04-11 AGENDA
	Draft Minutes Commissioner Mtg 03-28-2023
	Voucher Totals - 03.28.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 03.28.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 03.28.23
	Resolution 2023-XX General Levy Multi Year Lid Lift EQ FINAL
	Application For or Against Committee - Fillable Form

	NAME: 
	STREET ADDRESS: 
	CITY STATE ZIP: 
	PHONE NUMBER: 
	EMAIL ADDRESS: 
	Check Box FOR: Off
	Check Box AGAINST: Off


